






 

Board of Trustees 

Resource Committee Meeting (4/18/2023) 

MINUTES 

Page 1 of 3 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

THE HARRIS CENTER for 

MENTAL HEALTH AND IDD 
RESOURCE COMMITTEE MEETING 

TUESDAY,  APRIL 18, 2023 

MINUTES 
 

 

Mr. Gerald Womack, Chairman, called the meeting to order at 8:30 a.m. in the Room 109, 9401 Southwest 

Freeway, noting a quorum of the Committee was present.   
 

RECORD OF ATTENDANCE 

 

Committee Members in Attendance:  Mr. G. Womack, Dr. G. Santos, Mr. J. Lykes, Dr. M. Miller, Jr.  
 

Committee Member Absent:  

 

 Other Board Member Present:  Dr. L. Moore, Mr. S. Zakaria, Dr. R. Gearing 
 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

 Mr. Gerald Womack called the Resource Committee meeting to order at 8:33am.  

2. DESIGNATION OF BOARD MEMBERS AS VOTING COMMITTEE MEMBERS 

Mr. Womack designated Dr. L. Moore and Dr. R. Gearing as voting members of the committee. 

 

3.      DECLARATION OF QUORUM 

Mr. Womack declared a quorum was present.  

 

4. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

 There were no Public Comments. 

 

5. MINUTES  

 Approve Minutes of the Board of Trustees Resource Committee Meeting Held on Tuesday  

 March 21, 2023. 

    

 MOTION:  ZAKARIA   SECOND:  LYKES 

 

With unanimous affirmative votes, 

BE IT RESOLVED that the Minutes of the Board of Trustees Resource Committee Meeting Held on 

Tuesday, March 21, 2023, as presented under Exhibit R-1, are approved and recommended to the Full 

Board. 

 

6. CONSIDER AND RECOMMEND ACTION 

 

A. FY’23 Year-to-Date Budget Report-March 

 

MOTION: SANTOS  SECOND: ZAKARIA 

 

With unanimous affirmative votes, 

Page 3 of 114



 

Board of Trustees 

Resource Committee Meeting (4/18/2023) 

MINUTES 

Page 2 of 3 

BE IT RESOLVED FY’23 Year-to-Date Budget Report-March, is approved under exhibit R-2 and 

recommended to the Full Board. 

 

B. April 2023 New Contracts Over 100K 

 MOTION:  SANTOS  SECOND:  ZAKARIA 

 

With unanimous affirmative votes, 

BE IT RESOLVED April 2023 New Contracts Over 100K, under Exhibit R-3 are approved and 

recommended to the Full Board. 

 

C. April 2023 Contract Amendments Over 100K 

 MOTION:  SANTOS  SECOND:  LYKES 

 

With unanimous affirmative votes, 

BE IT RESOLVED April 2023 Contract Amendments Over 100K, under Exhibit R-4 are approved 

and recommended to the Full Board. 

 

D. April 2023 Contract Renewals Over 100K 

 

MOTION:  SANTOS  SECOND: LYKES 

 

With unanimous affirmative votes, 

BE IT RESOLVED April 2023 Contract Renewals Over 100K, under Exhibit R-5 are approved and 

recommended to the Full Board. 

 

E. April 2023 Interlocal Agreements 

 

MOTION:  SANTOS  SECOND: LYKES 

 

With unanimous affirmative votes, 

BE IT RESOLVED April 2023 Interlocal Agreements, under Exhibit R-5 are approved and 

recommended to the Full Board. 

 

 8.    EXECUTIVE SESSION  

 

Dr. Santos announced the Quality Committee would enter into executive session at 9:28 am for 

the following reason:  

 

• In accordance with §551.072 of the Texas Government Code, discussion about the proposed 

lease for MCOT/RR program. Silvia Tiller, Director of Contracts & Real Estate, Kim 

Kornmayer, Vice President of CPEP Division and Keena Pace, Chief Operating Officer. 

 

9.   RECOVENE INTO OPEN SESSION-9:50am 

     

10.    CONSIDER AND TAKE ACTION AS A RESULT OF EXECUTIVE SESSION 

I move to approve the negotiation of a lease space for the housing of MCOT, MCOT-Rapid Response, 

and BHART for a term of three (3) years with an option for years four (4) and (5). 

Page 4 of 114



 

Board of Trustees 

Resource Committee Meeting (4/18/2023) 

MINUTES 

Page 3 of 3 

  MOTION:  SANTOS  SECOND:  ZAKARIA 

 

11.    ADJOURN      

 MOTION:  SANTOS  SECOND:  MOORE 

 There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 9:51 a.m. 

 

 

      

       _______________________________________________ 

         Veronica Franco, Board Liaison 

      Gerald W. Womack, Secretary/Chairman Resource Committee 

      THE HARRIS CENTER for Mental Health and IDD   

      Board of Trustees 
 

Page 5 of 114





Financial Report for Month Ended April 2023
Presented to Board Resource Committee May 16, 2023

1

Presented By: Vanessa McKeown, Chief Financial Officer

Page 6 of 114



The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Financial Report
For the Eighth Month and Year to Date Ended April 30, 2023

Fiscal Year 2023

Presented to the Resource Committee of the Board of Trustees on May 16, 2023

Page 7 of 114



May 16, 2023

Resource Committee
Board of Trustees
The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

The monthly financial report for April 30, 2023 of The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD
("The Center") is submitted herewith. This report was prepared by The Center's Accounting Department.
Responsibility for both accuracy of the presented data and the completeness and fairness of the presentation
rests with the Authority, the Chief Financial Officer and the Accounting Department. We believe the data
as presented is accurate in all material respects; that it is presented in a manner designed to fairly set
forth the financial position and results of operations of the Center.

The Authority's accounting records for general operations are maintained on a modified accrual basis. Under this
method, revenues are recognized in the period when they become measurable and available, and expenditures
are recognized when the related fund liability is incurred, if measurable. The financial statement submitted
herewith has not been audited by an independent auditor.

Steve Evans  
Controller

The Harris Center for Mental Health & IDD

Page 1

Digitally signed by Steve EvansSteve Evans Date: 2023.05.08 16:04:57 -05'00'

Page 8 of 114



The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD
Financial Summary

For the Eighth Month and Year to Date Ended April 30, 2023

Month (,000)
Actual Budget Variance

Revenues $ 27,948 $ 26,109 $ 1,839
Expenditures 26,912 26,680 (233)

Excess of Revenues over (under)  
Expenditures before Other Sources   $ 1,035    $ (570) $ 1,606

Year-to-date (,000)
Actual Budget Variance

Excess of Revenues over (under)
Expenditures after Other Sources $ 1,238 $ 845 $ 393

Page 2

Page 9 of 114



Actual Budget

Total Revenues:
Harris County and Local $ 5,823,378 $ 5,005,558 $ 817,820 16%
PAP / Samples 707,003 420,000 287,003 68%
Interest 414,146 129,940 284,206 c 219%
State General 9,584,026 9,507,036 76,990 1%
State Grants 887,511 1,220,606 (333,095) d -27%
Federal Grants 3,152,201 3,156,909 (4,709) 0%
Directed Payment Program 817,840 817,840 0 0%
Charity Care Pool 4,158,429 3,366,382 792,047 24%
3rd party billings 2,403,339 2,485,064 (81,725) e -3%

Total Revenue 27,947,873 26,109,335 1,838,537 f 7%

$ 42,576,554 $ 40,112,226 $ 2,464,328 6%
6,542,368 4,340,000 2,202,368 51%
1,432,023 1,039,518 392,505 38%

76,377,846 76,056,141 321,705 0%
9,000,605 9,764,832 (764,227) -8%

25,932,548 28,622,991 (2,690,443) -9%
6,542,722 6,542,720 2 0%

28,515,149 26,931,056 1,584,093 6%
17,841,190 19,880,371 (2,039,181) -10%

214,761,007 213,289,855 1,471,152 1%

154,268,777 (2,438,310) -2%
1,210,503 24,336 2%

15,663,062 1,572,587 10%
18,581,872 (9,534) 0%

8,692,140 (1,514,536) -17%
4,184,245 309,429 7%
3,959,887 1,387,288 35%

684,115 27,145 4%
2,297,325 (147,664) -6%
1,424,829 50,827 4%
5,343,997 (407,934) -8%

216,310,752 (1,146,367) -1%

(3,020,897) 324,785

Total Operating Expenses:
Salaries and Fringe 19,145,538 18,951,614 (193,925) g -1% 156,707,087
Travel 180,916 137,012 (43,904) -32% 1,186,167
Contracts and Consultants 1,894,859 1,957,150 62,291 3% 14,090,475
HCPC Contract 2,331,258 2,322,734 (8,524) 0% 18,591,406
Supplies and Drugs 1,243,961 1,084,415 (159,546) h -15% 10,206,676
Equipment (Purch, Rent, Maint) 319,781 521,142 201,361 39% 3,874,816
Building (Purch, Rent, Maint) 340,966 494,816 153,850 31% 2,572,599
Vehicle (Purch, Rent, Maint) 189,722 85,288 (104,434) i -122% 656,970
Telephone and Utilities 315,624 287,176 (28,448) -10% 2,444,989
Insurance, Legal, Audit 181,782 175,569 (6,213) -4% 1,374,002
Other 768,047 662,871 (105,176) j -16% 5,751,931

Total Operating Expenses 26,912,455 26,679,787 (232,668) k -1% 217,457,119

Excess of Revenues over (under)
Operating Expenditures before Other Sources 1,035,418 a (570,452) 1,605,870 (2,696,112)

Capital Expenses from fund balance Capex 343,518 - (343,518) 3,081,840 - (3,081,840)

l
3,061,557

-
3,866,208

63,057
25,285

- 3,061,557
- -

3,866,208 -
- 63,057
- 25,285

Funds from other sources:
Use of fund balance - CapEx 344,273 - 344,273
Use of fund balance - COVID-19 - - -
Fund Balance DSRIP 483,276 483,276 -
Insurance Proceeds 5,538 - 5,538
Proceeds from Sale of Assets - - -

Excess of Revenues over (under)
Total Expenditures after Other Sources $ 1,524,987 $ (87,176) $ 1,612,163

============ ============ ===========
$ 1,238,156 b $ 845,311 $ 392,845

============ ============ ============

 Month Ended April 30, 2023

Variance
    Favorable or (Unfavorable) 

Actual Budget $ %

Variance
   Favorable or (Unfavorable) 

$ %

The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD
Comparison of Revenue and Expenses - Actual to Budget

For the Eighth Month and Year to Date Ended April 30, 2023

 Eight Months Ended April 30, 2023

Page 3

Page 10 of 114



The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD
Comparative Balance Sheet

As of April 30, 2023

 Ending Balance
 March 31, 2023  April 30, 2023

 Increase/(Decrease) 
 April

Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Inventory - includes RX
Prepaid Expenses
A/R Medicaid, Medicare, 3rd Party

Less Bad Debt Reserve
A/R Other
Total Current Assets

$ 129,858,734
412,498

5,264,618
12,902,190
(4,065,761)

 23,655,194 
 168,027,474 

$ 114,290,055 $ (15,568,679) a
403,335 (9,163) b

4,641,369 (623,250) c
13,533,921 631,731
(3,707,232) 358,529

 21,622,129  (2,033,065) d
 150,783,577  (17,243,897)

Right of Use Asset (Lease)
Land
Building
Building Improvements
Furniture and Fixtures
Vehicles
Construction in Progress
Total Property, Plant & Equipment

1,933,770
12,697,202
25,389,494
21,199,392
6,892,446
1,029,774

 23,343,658 
 92,485,736 

$260,513,210 

1,933,770
12,693,783
25,389,494
21,199,392
6,892,446
1,155,069

 23,688,731 
 92,952,685 

$243,736,262 

-
(3,419)

-
-
-

125,295
 345,073 

 466,949 

16,776,948)TOTAL ASSETS       $ (

Liabilities and Fund Balance

Unearned Income
Accrued Payroll and Accounts Payables
Lease Liability - Current
Current Portion Long Term Debt
Total Current Liabilities

$ 58,730,082
17,158,369

511,404
 -
 76,399,855 

$ 44,552,530 $ (14,177,551) e
13,400,340 (3,758,029) f

511,404 -
  -
 58,464,275  (17,935,580)

State Escheatment Payable
Lease Liability - Long Term
Lease-Accrued Interest
Total Non Current Liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES

55,995
853,289

 5,964 
 915,248 

 77,315,103 

50,242
853,289

 5,964 
 909,494 

 59,373,769 

(5,754)
-

 -
 (5,754)

 (17,941,334)

18,143,699 9,163 g

403,335 (9,163)
92,952,685 466,949

General Fund Balance 18,134,536
Nonspendable

Investment in Inventories 412,498
Investment In Fixed Assets 92,485,736

Assigned:
Current Capital Projects 7,966,698
Future Purchases of Real Property and IT Infrastructure 1,365,842

Self Insurance 2,000,000
ECI Building Use 361,664
Waiver 1115 54,999,543
COVID-19 eFMAP Reserve 904,067
Compensated Absences  4,854,354 

Total 183,484,938

7,622,425
1,365,842
2,000,000

361,664
54,516,267

904,067
 4,854,354 

183,124,337

(344,273)
-
-
-

(483,276) h
-

 -
(360,600)

Year to Date Excess Revenues over
(under) Expenditures (286,831) 1,238,156 1,524,987

TOTAL FUND BALANCE  183,198,106 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE   $ 260,513,210 

 184,362,493 

   $ 243,736,262 

 1,164,387 

  $ (16,776,947)

Page 4

Page 11 of 114



The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD  
Notes to the Preliminary Financial Reports

For Month and Year to Date Ended April 30, 2023

I. Comparison of Revenue and Expenses
a. For the month of April 2023, the eighth month of the fiscal year, the Harris Center is reporting excess  

operating Revenues over Expenditures of $1,035,418 before funds from other
sources are considered.

b. The year-to-date amount translates to Excess Revenues over Expenses of $1,238,156 after use
of fund balance, fund balance CapEx, fund balance DSRIP, Charity Care Pool and Directed Payment  
Program revenues and insurance proceeds are considered.

c. Interest Revenue is favorable to budget by $284,206 due to higher cash and investment balances  
associated with recent receipt of Charity Care Pool and County General allocation funds.

d. State Grants are unfavorable to budget by $333,095 due to unspent construction funds in
the Healthy Community grant. ECI grant funds are also down for the month due to offsetting patient  
insurance collections.

e. Third Party billings are unfavorable to budget by $81,725.

f. Total Revenue is favorable to budget by $1,838,537.

g. Salaries and Fringe are unfavorable to budget by $193,925 primarily due to positions  
filled with grant funds awarded after approval of the original budget.

h. Supplies and Drugs are unfavorable to budget by $159,546 due to greater use of PAP drugs
than projected. PAP drugs are recognized as expenses in Supplies and Drugs but are offset by PAP  
Revenue in the financials.

i. Vehicles are unfavorable to budget by $104,434 due to 50% down payment on the Mobile Crisis  
Response Unit Wellness vehicle purchased from Texas Bus Sales.

j. Other is unfavorable to budget by $105,176 primarily due to a change in internal amortization policy  
where certain expenses are full recognized in the period incurred.

k. Total Operating Expenses are unfavorable to budget by $232,668.

l. Funds from other sources used to fund current month expenses totaled $833,088 including  
DSRIP reserves,insurance proceeds and use of CapEx funds.

Page 5

Page 12 of 114



The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD  
Notes to the Preliminary Financial Reports

For Month and Year to Date Ended April 30, 2023

II. Comparative Balance Sheet

a. Cash and Cash Equivalents - The Agency considers cash and cash equivalents to be cash
on hand, demand deposit accounts and short term investments with maturities of less
than ninety days. Cash and cash equivalents decreased from the prior month primarily
because of use of State and County General allocation funds.

Cash-General Fund Bank of America
Cash-General Fund Chase
Cash-SSI Chase
Cash-BOA ACH Vendor
Cash-Pharmacy Chase
Cash-FSA-Discovery
Petty Cash/Pharmacy Cash Drawer
Investments-TexPool General Fund
Investments-TexPool Self Insurance
Investments-TexPool Prime
Investments-Texas Class

c. Prepaid Expenses decreased due to DPP-BHS activity.

Ending Balance
Increase

(Decrease)
3/31/2023 4/30/2023 April

7,597,673 6,907,051 $ (690,621)
34,470,963 23,354,169 (11,116,794)

18,896 23,156 4,260
225,776 689,869 464,093
299,177 521,010 221,834
153,407 152,455 (951)

5,950 5,950 -
1,028,814 1,032,872 4,058
2,351,170 2,360,442 9,273

41,845,634 42,017,312 171,678
 41,861,276 37,225,768 (4,635,508)
  $ 129,858,734 $ 114,290,055 $ (15,568,679)

b. Inventory book balances are updated monthly utilizing calculations for inventory purchased
and used during the month. Inventory balances are accurately updated annually after the
year-end physical inventory. PAP/drug samples are not included in inventory , as this
inventory does not belong to the Center.
Inventory consists of the following:

Ending Balance
Increase

(Decrease)
3/31/2023 4/30/2023 April

Inventory-Central Supplies 2,561 2,561 $ -
Supplies Purchased 37,500 37,500 $ -
Supplies Used (23,225) (32,388) (9,163)
Inventory-Drugs 395,662 395,662 -
Total Inventory   $ 412,498 $ 403,335 $ (9,163)

Page 6

Page 13 of 114



The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD  
Notes to the Preliminary Financial Reports

For Month and Year to Date Ended April 30, 2023

II. Comparative Balance Sheet (continued)

d. Accounts Receivable Other decreased in April.

Ending Balance
Increase

(Decrease)
3/31/2023 4/30/2023 April

104,536 104,536 -
63,185 63,185 -

114,941 121,243 6,303
(677) (677) -

4,401 4,401 -
237,607 242,222 4,615

326 596 270
56 146 90

894,753 916,662 21,910
123,681 158,825 35,144

(499) (499) -
1,014,137 1,188,220 174,083

448,756 510,793 62,036
2,574 5,272 2,698

909,901 896,343 (13,557)
5,901,432 6,204,112 302,680

247,112 261,056 13,945
726,292 757,525 31,232
82,000 82,000 -
66,668 66,668 -
97,484 151,967 54,483

4,848,708 2,144,193 (2,704,515)
1,751,885 759,224 (992,661)

- - -
19,893 23,178 3,285

- - -
154,486 41,516 (112,970)
838,256 1,175,011 336,755
178,020 178,349 330
73,120 (0) (73,120)

396,389 411,412 15,023
28,573 31,186 2,613

203,237 191,551 (11,686)
 143,866 230,191 86,325 

$ 19,675,097 $ 16,920,408 $ (2,754,689)

Villas at Bayou Park  
Pear Grove  
Pasadena Cottages  
Employee
Pecan Village
Acres Homes Garden  
Foundation
NAMI of Greater Houston  
General Accounts Receivable  
Pharmacy PBM
Cobra Premiums  
Harris County Projects
Harris County Juvenile Probation  
AR Fed SAMHSA - CHRP
Harris County Community Supervision  
Harris County Sheriff's Department  
ICFMR
TCOOMMI-Special Needs  
TDCJ-Parole
TDCJ-Substance Abuse  
TCOOMMI-Juvenile
Jail Diversion  
ECI
ECI Respite  
ECI SNAP
Federal CHH Navigation  
Federal Aot
ARPA-COH-MCOT RR Expansion  
ARPA-COH-Core HPD Expansion  
Fed SAMHSA CCBHC Expansion
AR Fed ARPA TPWD Fam Well Ctr  
AR Fed ARPA ECI
PATH-Mental Health Block Grant
MH Block Grant-Coordinated Specialty

Subtotal, A/R-Other

Page 7

Page 14 of 114



The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD  
Notes to the Preliminary Financial Reports

For Month and Year to Date Ended April 30, 2023

II. Accounts Receivable Other (Continued)

DSHS SAPT Block Grant
AR State TCMHCC
Enhanced Community Coordinator
DSHS Mental Heath First Aid
HHSC ZEST-Zero Suicide
HCC Open Door
HCS
Tx Home Living Waiver
DPP-BHS
Charity Care Pool
Fed ARPA COF-CIRT HPD
Helpline Contracts
City of Houston-CCSI
City of Houston-DMD
City of Houston-911 CCD Amended

A/R - HHSC Projects
Local Be Well Be Connected
Grand Total A/R - Other

e. Unearned Income decreased due to use of State GR and County General Allocation funds.

f. Accrued Payroll and Accounts Payable decreased because of payment timing related to accounts
payable, payroll, and employee fringe benefit liabilities.

g. General Fund Balance increased due to decrease in non-spendable fund balance for inventory.

h. Waiver 1115 Reserves decreased due to use of budgeted DSRIP reserves for operations.
Total DSRIP Reserves on hand at end of month equals $54,516,267.

i. Days of Operations in Reserve for Total Agency is 100 days versus 98 days for the prior month.

III. Investment Portfolio

a. Total investments as of April 30, 2023 are $82,636,393 of which 100% is in government pools.
(Texas Class 45% and TexPool 55%)

b. Investments this month yielded interest income of $414,146.

Ending Balance
Increase

(Decrease)
3/31/2023 4/30/2023 April

71,453 54,197 (17,256)
- - -

85,430 63,155 (22,274)
21,600 13,400 (8,200)
27,386 100,625 73,239

232,802 262,006 29,205
22,416 22,416 -

330,791 339,477 8,686
752,657 966,664 214,007

(0) (0) -
37,173 39,472 2,299
79,489 95,063 15,574
50,537 50,537 -
18,667 18,667 -
39,395 19,167 (20,228)

2,210,301 2,656,874 446,573
 - - -
  $ 23,655,194 $ 21,622,129 $ (2,033,065)

Page 8

Page 15 of 114



Page 9

Local Government Investment Pools (LGIPs)

Texas CLASS
Texas CLASS General Fund

Additional Interest-Checking Accounts  64,646 

Total Interest Earned

3 Month Weighted Average Maturity (Days)
3 Month Weighted Average Yield of The Harris Center Investment Portfolio
3 Month Rolling Weighted Average Daily Treasury Bill Rate (4 weeks)
April Interest Rate - Chase Hybrid Checking
April ECR - Chase

 414,146 

1.00
4.842%
4.369%
3.15%
3.25%

This Investment Portfolio Report of The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD as of February 28,2023 is in compliance with the Public Funds Investment Act (PFIA), Chapter 2256 of the Texas Government Code and the
Investment Strategy approved by the Board of Trustees.

Approved:

The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD
Investment Portfolio

As of April 30, 2023

Beginning Balance Transfer In Transfer Out Interest Income Ending Value Portfolio % Yield

$ 41,861,276 $ - $ (4,800,000) $ 164,492 $ 37,225,768 45.0% 5.042%

TexPool
TexPool Prime 41,845,634 $ - $ - 171,678 42,017,312 50.8% 4.801%
TexPool General Fund 1,028,814 4,057 1,032,871 1.2% 4.611%
TexPool Internal Service Fund 2,351,169 9,273 2,360,442 2.9% 4.611%

TexPool Sub-Total 45,225,617 - - 185,008 45,410,625 55.0% 4.786%

Total Investments $ 87,086,893 $ - $ (4,800,000) $ 349,500 $ 82,636,393 100% 4.902%

Hayden Hernandez, Accounting and Treas ury Manager

Texas CLASS GF,  
45.0%

TexPool Prime,  
50.8%

TexPool GF, 1.2% TexPool ISF, 2.9%

Investment Portfolio Weight

Page 9

Page 16 of 114



The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD
Monthly Report of Financial Transactions Related to Payments of Liabilities for Employee Benefits

Vendor Description Monthly Not-To-
Exceed* Apr-23 YTD Total

Through April

Lincoln Financial Group Retirement Funds
(401a, 403b, 457) $2,400,000 $1,818,663 $12,632,269

Blue Cross Blue Shield of TX Health and Dental Insurance $2,600,000 $2,560,365 $16,852,492

Report for April 2023

* As established by the Board Resolution: Harris Center Board of Trustees Signature Authorization and Delegation Authority for Certain Items effective February 22, 2022.

Note: Non-employee portion of April payments of Liabilities for Employee Benefits = 11% of Expenditures.

Page 10

Page 17 of 114



Thank You

Page 18 of 114





Page 19 of 114



Page 20 of 114



Page 21 of 114



Page 22 of 114



Page 23 of 114



Page 24 of 114



Page 25 of 114



Page 26 of 114



Page 27 of 114



Page 28 of 114



Page 29 of 114



Page 30 of 114



Page 31 of 114



Page 32 of 114



Page 33 of 114



Page 34 of 114



Page 35 of 114



Page 36 of 114



Page 37 of 114



Page 38 of 114



Page 39 of 114





Page 40 of 114



Page 41 of 114



Page 42 of 114



Page 43 of 114



Page 44 of 114



Page 45 of 114





 
 

1 
 

 
 
 
 
The HARRIS CENTER for Mental Health and IDD 

 
BOARD RESOLUTION 

Harris Center Board of Trustees Signature Authorization and 
Delegation Authority for Certain Items 

WHEREAS, The Harris Center Board of Trustees (the “Board”) has determined that in order for 
the business operations of the Harris Center to function in a proper and efficient manner, it is 
necessary and prudent for this Board to delegate certain powers and control over the Harris 
Center’s affairs to designated officers at The Harris Center. 

RESOLVED, for purposes of this resolution, the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial 
Officer shall each be considered an “Authorized Officer,” individually, and collectively, the 
“Authorized Officers”.  

RESOLVED, that the following actions authorizing payment or transfer in the name and on 
behalf of the Harris Center, without Board signature approval, for certain items was approved 
by the Board of Trustees on this date: 

I. The Board resolves that the Authorized Officers, collectively, are empowered, 
authorized and directed to authorize payment in the name and on behalf of the Harris 
Center, without Board signature approval, the below liabilities for employee benefits  
with stated monthly not-to-exceed amounts. Approval and authorization by each 
Authorized Officer, or designee, is required to initiate and complete the payment or 
transfer of liabilities for employee benefits.  Each Authorized Officer must affix his or 
her own signature (physical or electronic, as permitted) to any foregoing payment or 
transfer to conclusively establish authority and approval to carry out this resolution;  

 

Vendor Description     Monthly Not-to-Exceed 

Lincoln Financial 
Group 

Retirement Funds 
(401a, 403b, 457) $3,500,000  

Blue Cross Blue 
Shield of TX 

Health, Dental, and 
Life Insurance $3,200,000  

UNUM Life 
Insurance Co. Life Insurance $300,000  

 
II. The Chief Financial Officer shall prepare a monthly report of all financial transactions  

 
 

Page 46 of 114



 
 

2 
 

 
 

 
related to the payment of the liabilities for employee benefits and submit the report to 
the Harris Center Board of Trustees Resource Committee. The Chief Financial Officer 
shall ensure all supporting documentation sufficient to demonstrate the business purpose 
of the transaction(s), its occurrence and the accuracy of the amount are retained and 
available upon request by the Harris Center Board of Trustees.  

 
 
 

ALL OF THE FOREGOING SHALL BE EFFECTIVE 
May 23, 2023  

 
   

 
____________________________________ 

Secretary 
The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD 

Board of Trustees 
 
 

STATE of TEXAS 
COUNTY OF HARRIS 
 
 
Subscribed and sworn to before me this _____________ day of  
 
__________________, 2023. 
 

 
____________________________________ 

                                             Notary Public in and for the State of Texas 
 

  My Commission Expires:  __________________ 
 

Notary ID: _______________________________ 
 

Page 47 of 114





Phase I Condition Assessment
 9401 Southwest Fwy

 Loading Dock Assessment

Todd McCorquodale, Director of Facilities Services

1

Page 48 of 114



2

Phase I Condition Assessment | 9401 Southwest Fwy |Loading Dock Assessment

Walter P Moore was engaged to review reported distress at the loading dock of The Harris Center for Mental Health and 
IDD (THC) building, located at 9401 Southwest Freeway, Houston, Texas, 77074. 

The scope of our assessment was to investigate the distress by performing:
• A Visual Review, 
• Differential Elevation Survey 
• Below-grade Void Survey in the areas of concern.

 This assessment was performed to determine the likely cause(s) of the distress and provide conceptual 
recommendations for remediation of the observed distress and provide future course of action, as applicable. Based on 
our investigation, we have reached the following conclusions:

 
 

Page 49 of 114



Recurring Work Order Compliance

3

The likely cause of the building distress is differential movement of the underlying soils, which likely consist of sub-optimal, 
expansive soil that is sensitive to seasonal moisture conditions. 

There are several factors (or combination of factors) that can contribute to this type of distress such as:
• volumetric change of soil due to soil moisture variation, 
• differential soil consolidation, 
• soil wash-out, 
• construction deficiencies,
• unidentified soil conditions

The observed distress and the differential slab-on-ground movement is primarily a serviceability issue. 

The deeper foundation elements supporting the building itself do not appear to have been significantly impacted by differential 
movement based on the limited exterior distress observed during our assessment. However, the extent of the differential 
movement and voids beneath slab-on-ground appears extensive and needs to be mitigated in the near-term so that the condition 
does not worsen and become a structural concern.

Phase I Condition Assessment | 9401 Southwest Fwy |Loading Dock Assessment
Page 50 of 114



4

Phase I Condition Assessment | 9401 Southwest Fwy |Loading Dock Assessment

Walter P Moore representatives performed two 
site visits at THC building on September 7th
and September 15th, 2022, to review the loading 
dock, sidewalk at the south and east
sides of the building and select interior building 
areas.

Our observations were made from readily 
accessible locations without the removal of finishes. 

Page 51 of 114



Recurring Work Order Compliance

5

Phase I Condition Assessment | 9401 Southwest Fwy |Loading Dock Assessment

Exterior
• Large trees at the west side of the building.

• Differential elevation of the pavement panels at the loading dock and sidewalk at the south and east side of the building 
respectively.

• Apparent subsidence of the loading dock pavement.

• Spalled concrete with exposed dowels at isolated locations on the loading dock and sidewalk at the south and east sides of the 
building; exposed dowels corroded, fractured/cut, or both.

• Cracked concrete pavement and sidewalk at the loading dock and south/east sidewalk respectively.

• Missing, stretched, de-bonded, and/or deteriorated joint sealant at isolated locations on the loading dock and sidewalk 
perimeter.
• Cracked, stretched, and de-bonded sealant along the building perimeter.

• Voids underneath the slab-on-ground at the north, south, and east sides of the building; voids approximately 6 to 8 inches deep.

• A storm drain with drain inlet at the side closest to the building was identified on the west side of the building near the trees.

• Previously repaired cracks at the building façade.

Page 52 of 114



Recurring Work Order Compliance

6

Phase I Condition Assessment | 9401 Southwest Fwy |Loading Dock Assessment

Interior
• Cracked drywall in the mail/printing room and other isolated locations in the hallway at the southwest of the building.

• Separation around column inside the printing room at the southwest side of the building.

• Separation between partition drywalls in the printing room at the southwest side of the building.

Page 53 of 114



Recurring Work Order Compliance

7

Phase I Condition Assessment | 9401 Southwest Fwy |Loading Dock Assessment

Walter P Moore conducted a differential elevation survey at the loading dock, sidewalk, and select interior space at THC 
building on September 7th, 2022. Floor elevation measurements were generally taken at regular intervals within the 
surveyed areas. Adjustments were made as necessary to accommodate changes in building geometry, non-accessible and 
occupied spaces, and variances in flooring thickness. 

The results of our differential elevation survey at the loading dock indicates that the individual pavement sections at the 
loading dock have experienced differential movement on the order of 4.5 to 5.5-inches. The movement was more 
pronounced at the joints and corners between the concrete pavement panels as noted by differential elevation of the 
panels at the corners. 

Settlement was noted towards the north side of the loading dock and correlated with the on-site visual observation. A 
drain is present along the south side of the loading dock resulting in the lower elevation near the drain as indicated in the 
differential elevation survey. 

The sidewalk at the south side of the building was consistently sloped away from the building.
The east sidewalk was generally sloped away from the building. However, isolated local low points were noted near 
columns B, C, and D. At these points the sidewalk is sloping towards the columns from both east and west direction. 

Differential Elevation Survey

Page 54 of 114



Analysis and Conclusion

8

Phase I Condition Assessment | 9401 Southwest Fwy |Loading Dock Assessment

The building slab-on-ground, exterior loading dock pavement, and adjacent sidewalks are experiencing an overall pattern of 
distress consistent with and related to differential movement of the slab-on-ground. There are several factors that can 
contribute to this type of distress including volumetric change of soil due to soil moisture variation, soil consolidation, soil 
wash-out due to site drainage issues or failure of drainage systems, construction deficiencies, unidentified soil conditions
(such as a zone of historic fill), or a combination of these factors.

Based on our experience, the properties of the underlying native soil in the Greater Houston area typically consist of highly 
plastic, expansive clay soils that experience volumetric change with variation in soil moisture. When moisture infiltrates the 
soil, it expands and when moisture is extracted from the soil, it shrinks. Soil will experience fluctuations of shrinking and 
swelling with seasonal moisture variations that causes differential movement of the slab-on-ground, which leads to 
reoccurring distress that requires on-going maintenance and repairs.

Page 55 of 114



Recurring Work Order Compliance

9

Phase I Condition Assessment | 9401 Southwest Fwy |Loading Dock Assessment

Recommendations 
1. Plumbing and Storm Drain investigation and Repairs: Perform a plumbing and storm drain investigation of 
the building below-grade plumbing lines such as water lines, sanitary lines, clean-out lines, and the storm drains, to 
identify breaks or leaks in the lines.

2. Geotechnical Investigation: Perform a geotechnical investigation to understand the nature of the underlying soil 
and its contribution to the differential slab movement. A geotechnical investigation is required for the slab-on-ground 
repairs.

3. Mitigate Tree Impact: Install root barriers around the building perimeter or remove the trees around the building 
perimeter that may be extracting soil moisture beneath the slabon-ground.

4. Slab-on-Ground Repairs: The above recommendations are necessary prior to designing or implementing repairs 
to the slabs-on-ground at the property. The likely nature of the underlying soils means the slab-on-ground will 
experience future differential movement and therefore the slab-on-ground will require periodic maintenance. The 
following
summarizes the options to address the slab-on-ground distress:

a. Option 1 – Maintenance: Level the ground floor slab surface and fill the below grade voids via 
polyurethane foam injection or controlled low-strength concrete (CLSM) to restore the serviceability of the floor slab as 
required. This repair is considered a temporary maintenance repair as future movement of the floor slab 
will occur and future re-levelling will likely be required.

Page 56 of 114



Recurring Work Order Compliance

10

Phase I Condition Assessment | 9401 Southwest Fwy |Loading Dock Assessment

Recommendations Cont. 

b. Option 2 – Subgrade Replacement: Remove the existing concrete slab-on-ground and excavate the existing soil. 
The extent of soil removal is unknown and will require a geotechnical investigation. Based on our experience, the 
remediation will likely require 5-feet or more of soil removal. After excavation is complete, backfill with new select-fill 
soil, properly compacted subgrade, and install a new concrete slab-on-ground. It would also require removal of all 
interior finishes and reconstruction of those finishes. This option will result in a slab-on-ground with greater ability to 
limit future distress.

5. Concrete Loading Dock Pavement and Sidewalk Repairs: Repair the spalled concrete at the loading dock 
pavement and sidewalk. Where concrete sidewalk cracks pose a tripping hazard, we recommend removing and replacing 
the affected sidewalk panels. Install new joint sealant at concrete sidewalk panel joints and at the interface of the 
sidewalk to the building perimeter.

6. Interior Finishes Repairs: Repair interior finishes after the floor slab has been leveled and the void space filled. 
Where possible, the new finishes should incorporate joints that allow for minor future movement to occur with reduced 
potential of distress to the partitions. These repairs may be a temporary repair as building movement may cause these 
distress items to reoccur.

Page 57 of 114



Recurring Work Order Compliance

11

Phase I Condition Assessment | 9401 Southwest Fwy |Loading Dock Assessment

Estimated Cost (These are not actual cost estimates since the details have not been defined) 

1. Plumbing and Storm Drain investigations and repairs
a. Scope lines (ballpark number / size of lines?): say $7,500 for video scoping lines (depends on number of lines, access, and days on site)
b. Repair leaks and breaks (totally unknown at this time): no swag possible ($0 to all new lines)

2. Geotechnical investigation
a. Say three 20’ deep borings and report: $20,000

3. Mitigate Tree Impact
a. Say 700’ of root barrier @$25/lf: $17,500

4. Slab-on-ground repairs
a. Say remove and replace 5,000 sq ft of exterior patio slab on grade @$20/sf: $100,000
b. Say polyurethane lift 15,000 sq ft of interior slab 1” @$4/sf: $60,000

5. Concrete Pavement Repairs
a. Say remove and replace 500 sq ft of exterior parking lot slab on grade @$20/sf: $10,000

6. Interior Finish Repairs
a. Say 15,000 sq ft at $30/sf: $450,000

7. Engineering to produce construction documents (to be refined when scope better defined):
a. Suggest budgeting $40,000 for CDs
b. Suggest budgeting $20,000 for CA

 

Page 58 of 114



Recurring Work Order Compliance

12

Phase I Condition Assessment | 9401 Southwest Fwy |Loading Dock Assessment

Estimated Cost (These are not actual cost estimates since the details have not been defined) 

Rough Order of Magnitude budget above is  $725,000 without contingency
Suggest 20% contingency  $145,000

$870,000

 (totals $870,000 just round up to $900,000 since no GC costs built in, could be as much $1,000,000)
 

Page 59 of 114



Thank You

Page 60 of 114





Page 1 of 1 
 

 
 

 
May 16, 2023 

 
 

Request for Board Approval 
 Payment of Covid Related Expenses from COVID-19 eFMAP Reserve 

 
 
Background:  
 
The current COVID-19 eFMAP Reserve balance is $904,067. 
 
Board authorization is required to pull funds from the COVID-19 eFMAP Reserve 
balance to cover unfunded expenses in Unit 2379 (COVID-19). 

 
$904,000 COVID-19 eFMAP Reserve 
($533,515) FY23 COVID-related expenses in Unit 2379 
$372,052 Remaining COVID-19 eFMAP Reserve Balance 

 
Summary of Expenses  
  

Cell Phone  36,184 
Contract Labor  33,235 
Drugs  17,378 
Equipment  16,218 
Office Supplies    6,040 
Payroll  66,023 
PPE 164,567 
Subscriptions  61,835 
Translation Services 131,752 
Vehicle       283 
Total 533,515 

 
 

Request Summary: Pull $533,515 from COVID-19 eFMAP Reserve balance to cover 
FY23 COVID related expenses. 
 
Vanessa McKeown, Chief Financial Officer 

Page 61 of 114





Page 62 of 114



Page 63 of 114



Page 64 of 114



Page 65 of 114



Page 66 of 114



Page 67 of 114



Page 68 of 114



Page 69 of 114



Page 70 of 114



Page 71 of 114



Page 72 of 114



Page 73 of 114



Page 74 of 114



Page 75 of 114



Page 76 of 114



Page 77 of 114





Page 78 of 114



Page 79 of 114



Page 80 of 114



Page 81 of 114



Page 82 of 114



Page 83 of 114



Page 84 of 114



Page 85 of 114



Page 86 of 114



Page 87 of 114



Page 88 of 114



Page 89 of 114



Page 90 of 114



Page 91 of 114



Page 92 of 114



Page 93 of 114



Page 94 of 114



Page 95 of 114





Page 96 of 114



Page 97 of 114



Page 98 of 114



Page 99 of 114



Page 100 of 114



Page 101 of 114



Page 102 of 114



Page 103 of 114



Page 104 of 114



Page 105 of 114



Page 106 of 114



Page 107 of 114



Page 108 of 114



Page 109 of 114



Page 110 of 114



Page 111 of 114



Page 112 of 114



Page 113 of 114



Page 114 of 114


	Agenda
	I. DECLARATION OF A QUORUM
	II. PUBLIC COMMENTS
	III. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
	A. Approve Minutes of the Board of Trustees Resource Committee Meeting Held on Tuesday, April 18, 2023

	IV. CONSIDER AND RECOMMEND ACTION 
	A. Approve FY’23 Year-to-Date Budget Report- April
	B. May 2023 Amendments Over 100K
	C. May 2023 Interlocal Agreements
	D. Board Signature Authorization and Delegation of Authority
	E. Facilities Project Update
	F. Payment of COVID-19 Expenses from COVID-19 eFMAP Reserve

	V. EXECUTIVE SESSION-
 •	As authorized by §551.071 of the Texas Government Code, the Board of Trustees reserves the right to adjourn into Executive Session at anytime during the course of this meeting to seek legal advice from its attorney about any matters listed on the agenda.

	VI. RECONVENE INTO OPEN SESSION
	VII. CONSIDER AND TAKE ACTION AS A RESULT OF THE EXECUTIVE SESSION
	VIII. INFORMATION ONLY 
	A. May 2023 New Contracts Under 100K
	B. May 2023 Amendments Under 100K
	C. May 2023 Affiliation, Agreements, Grants, MOU's and Revenues Information Only

	IX. ADJOURN
	

____________________________
Veronica Franco, Board Liaison 
Gerald Womack, Chairman
Resource Committee
THE HARRIS CENTER for Mental Health and IDD
Board of Trustees

